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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI
EASTERN DIVISION

E.L., a minor, by LA’SHIEKA WHITE the ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
mother, legal guardian, and next friend of E.L.,)
) Case No.:
Plaintiff, )
)
v. )
) COMPLAINT FOR
VOLUNTARY INTERDISTRICT CHOICE ) DECLARATORY AND
CORPORATION, ) INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
)
Defendant. )
)
INTRODUCTION
1. To escape the rampant crime in the City of St. Louis and secure a better home for her

three children, La’Shieka White recently moved with her family to a modest home in the St. Louis
suburbs. As a result of that move, La’Shieka’s oldest son, E.L., a third-grade student at Gateway
Science Academy (Gateway), will not be permitted to attend Gateway next year. The only thing
preventing E.L. from enrolling at Gateway next year is his skin color. E.L. is prohibited from
attending public schools in the City of St. Louis, including magnet schools and charter schools,
because he is African-American. If he were white he would be eligible to attend those schools.
E.L.’s mother, La’Shieka White, brings this lawsuit on his behalf, seeking to vindicate his right to
be free of racial discrimination, as guaranteed by the United States Constitution’s Equal Protection

Clause.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This action arises under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution,
42 U.S.C. §§ 1981 and 1983. The Court has jurisdiction of these federal law claims under 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331 (federal question) and 1343(a) (redress deprivation of civil rights). Declaratory relief is
authorized by the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-2202.

3. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e), because Defendant
resides in this district, and because a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to
Plaintiffs’ claims occurred or will occur in this district.

4. Divisional venue is proper in the Eastern Division of this Court, because the
Defendant resides in this division and the claim for relief arose in this division. See Local
R. 02-07(B)(1).

PARTIES
Plaintiffs

5. E.L. is a minor, who resides in the city of Maryland Heights in St. Louis County,
Missouri. His residence is zoned for the Pattonville School District. E.L. is a third grade student
at Gateway Science Academy in the City of St. Louis. He is African-American.

6. La’Shieka White is E.L’s mother, legal guardian, and next friend. She resides in the
city of Maryland Heights in St. Louis County, Missouri, with her husband and three children,
including E.L. Her residence is zoned for the Pattonville School District. La’Shieka White is
African-American.

Defendant
7. Defendant Voluntary Interdistrict Choice Corporation (VICC) is a 501(c)(3)

non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Missouri. VICC is governed by a
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board of directors comprised of superintendents of the participating St. Louis-area school districts.
VICC is responsible for administering the St. Louis Student Transfer Program (transfer program),
enacting policies applicable to the transfer program, and making decisions about the transfer
program. Defendant is responsible for the transfer of non-African-American St. Louis County
students to public schools within the City of St. Louis. Virtually all of Defendant’s funding to
support the transfer program is provided by the State of Missouri through its normal public school
aid sources.
ALLEGATIONS

Current VICC Policy

8. Only African-American students residing in the City of St. Louis are eligible to
transfer to a school district in the County of St. Louis. VICC’s Board policy JCA.BP, which requires
the race-based transfer restrictions is attached as Exhibit A, and its provisions are incorporated
herein.

9. Per the Board’s policy, only white students residing in St. Louis County are eligible
to transfer to a public school in the City of St. Louis.

10.  Any student who lives in the City of St. Louis and non-African-American students
who live in the county school districts of Affton, Bayless, Brentwood, Clayton, Hancock Place,
Kirkwood, Ladue, Lindbergh, Mehlville, Parkway, Pattonville, Ritenour, Rockwood, Valley Park,
or Webster Groves are eligible to attend St. Louis Magnet Schools. The 2016-2017 Magnet School
Guide, which includes the application for St. Louis County residents to attend magnet schools in the
City of St. Louis, is attached as Exhibit B, and its provisions are incorporated herein. The race-based

eligibility restrictions are found on page 4 of the Guide.
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11.  Although VICC’s Board policy JCA.BP limits transfers to white students, the magnet
school application extends eligibility to transfer into the city to any “non-African-American” student.
African-American students are prohibited from transferring. See Attachment B, at 4.

The Liddell Litigation

12.  In 1972, black parents filed a class action lawsuit alleging racial discrimination and
segregation in St. Louis schools in violation of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States
Constitution. The Eighth Circuit ruled that St. Louis schools operated a dual-system that was
segregated on the basis of race in violation of the Fourteenth Amendment. A “system-wide remedy”’
was needed for a “system-wide violation.” Adams v. United States, 620 F.2d 1277, 1291 (8th Cir.
1980). The Eighth Circuit ordered St. Louis schools to integrate and instructed the district court to
retain jurisdiction in order to ensure “that the plan effectively integrates the entire St. Louis school
system and to ensure that the plan is, in fact, being carried out.” Id. at 1297.

13. On remand to the district court, the parties reached a settlement and proposed a
consent decree that was approved by the district court and affirmed by the Eighth Circuit. See
Liddell v. Bd. of Educ., 567 F. Supp. 1037 (E.D. Mo. 1983), aff’d, Liddell v. Missouri, 731 F.2d 1294
(8th Cir. 1984). The court retained jurisdiction to enforce the consent decree and settlement.
Liddell, 567 F. Supp. at 1058. The consent decree and settlement agreement included a
comprehensive plan to improve racial integration in St. Louis schools.

14. One component of the plan included a voluntary interdistrict transfer plan. This plan,
named the St. Louis Student Transfer Program (transfer program), was based on race. African-
American students residing in the City of St. Louis would be permitted to transfer to school districts

in St. Louis County (city-to-county). White students residing in St. Louis County would be
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permitted to transfer into a school located in the City of St. Louis (county-to-city). Liddell, 731 F.2d
at 1300.

15.  Inorder to attract white students into schools located in the City of St. Louis, the plan
created additional magnet schools in the City. 1d. These schools could only be attended by students
residing in the City or white students transferring in from the county. Planning for the creation of
new magnet schools was required to focus on attracting suburban white students. Id. at 1311-12.

16.  The consent decree governed integration of St. Louis schools until 1999. In 1999,
the district court approved a new settlement agreement. As a result of the new agreement, federal
supervision over the racial integration of St. Louis schools ended. The Court dismissed the case with
prejudice, dissolved all prior injunctions, and dismissed all pending motions as moot. Liddell v. Bd.
of Educ. of the City of St. Louis, Missouri, No. 4:72CV100 SNL, 1999 WL 33314210, at *9 (E.D.
Mo. Mar. 12, 1999).

The 1999 Settlement Agreement

17.  The 1999 Settlement Agreement transformed the federally supervised transfer
program into a voluntary program under the jurisdiction the Voluntary Interdistrict Choice
Corporation. VICC is a non-profit corporation governed by a board of directors comprised of
superintendents of the participating school districts and funded by public dollars.

18.  The 1999 Settlement Agreement continued the race-based St. Louis Student Transfer
Program. Under the terms of the 1999 Settlement Agreement, city-to-county transfers are only
permitted for black students, and county-to-city transfers are only permitted for white students.

19.  The 1999 Settlement Agreement continued the magnet school program, and

established new race-based enrollment guidelines for magnet schools.
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20.  VICCisresponsible for administering the transfer program, creating the policy of the
transfer program, and making decisions about the transfer program.

21. The terms of the 1999 Settlement Agreement were initially required to govern for ten
years, however, the Agreement also specified that the race-based transfer program could be extended
to new students beyond the 2008-2009 ending date for new enrollments. An initial five-year
extension pursuant to this provision was unanimously approved by the VICC Board in June, 2007,
with a second five-year extension approved in October, 2012. As a result, new students are
continuing to be accepted into the transfer program through at least the 2018-2019 school year.

22. The VICC Board is solely responsible for extending the race-based transfer program.
The assent of no other entity is required. Accordingly, VICC bears full responsibility for the
continuing enforcement and administration of the race-based transfer program.

Gateway Science Academy

23.  Gateway Science Academy of St. Louis (Gateway) is a public charter school located
in the City of St. Louis.

24, Gateway provides its students with an innovative world class education, rich in math,
science, and technology and focuses on preparing students to become bold inquirers, problem
solvers, and ethical leaders, who are ready for post-secondary education.

25.  Gateway enrolls students who reside in the City of St. Louis. In addition, under
Missouri law, charter schools must enroll “[n]onresident pupils eligible to attend a district’s school
under an urban voluntary transfer program.” Mo. Ann. Stat. § 160.410.

26. Non-black students who live in the county school districts of Affton, Bayless,

Brentwood, Clayton, Hancock Place, Kirkwood, Ladue, Lindbergh, Mehlville, Parkway, Pattonville,
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Ritenour, Rockwood, Valley Park, or Webster Groves are eligible to enroll at Gateway, because they
could enroll in a “district’s school under an urban voluntary transfer program.” Id.

27.  African-American students who live in St. Louis County are ineligible to be enrolled
at Gateway, or any charter school located in the City of St. Louis.

28. Gateway officials gave La’Shieka White a handout explaining the enrollment
requirements at Gateway. A true and correct copy of that handout is attached as Exhibit C. The
handout accords with the race-based restrictions in the 2016-2017 Magnet School Guide. In
particular, it explains that non-African-American students residing in the Pattonville School District
may be enrolled at Gateway. African-American students residing in the Pattonville School District
are ineligible to be enrolled.

Facts Relating to the Plaintiffs

29.  La’Shieka White and E.L. lived in the City of St. Louis when E.L. enrolled at
Gateway in 2012. For the past two years, their residence was a small two-bedroom apartment with
no yard. La’Shieka and E.L. lived there with La’Shieka’s husband and their two children, a 2-year
old boy and an 8-month old girl.

30.  Atthe White’s previous home in the City of St. Louis, the family car was broken into
on multiple occasions, and family members regularly heard gunshots.

31.  E.L. started at Gateway Science Academy (Gateway) in the City of St. Louis in
August, 2012. E.L. started there as a kindergartner and is now in the third grade.

32.  E.L. has excelled at Gateway. He currently has a 3.79 GPA, and has above average
testing scores in language arts, math, and science.

33.  InMarch, 2016, the White family moved to a house in Maryland Heights, Missouri.

The Whites purchased the home so that they would have more space for their growing family,

-7 -
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including a backyard and basement. Their new home is much safer than their past residence, and

the family has yet to hear a gunshot.

34.  The White’s new home is located in St. Louis County and is zoned for the Pattonville
School District.
35.  Because of E.L.’s success at Gateway, La’Shieka sought to ensure his continued

enrollment at the school after the family relocated to a safer community in St. Louis County. When
she inquired into enrolling E.L. at Gateway in future years, she learned that he would be unable to
attend because he is African-American.

36.  IfE.L. were white, he could enroll at Gateway Science Academy for the 2016-2017
school year.

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ALLEGATIONS

37.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every allegation set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 36 of this Complaint.

38.  Defendant adopted and implemented the race-based rules governing the St. Louis
Student Transfer Program. These rules prohibit African-American students, like E.L., from
transferring to schools within the City of St. Louis, including magnet schools. The race-based
transfer rules prevent charter schools like Gateway Science Academy from enrolling black students
who reside in St. Louis County. If Defendant is not enjoined from enforcing the race-based transfer
rules, Plaintiffs will be irreparably harmed in that E.L. will be prohibited from attending Gateway
Science Academy, St. Louis city magnet schools, and St. Louis city public schools. The race-based
transfer rules currently discriminate against Plaintiffs on the basis of race, and they will continue to

do so in the foreseeable future.
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39. If not enjoined by this Court, Defendant and its agents, representatives, and
employees will continue to discriminate against individuals on the basis of race, in contravention of
the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution.

40. Pecuniary compensation to Plaintiffs or other victims of such continuing
discrimination would not afford adequate relief.

41.  Injunctivereliefis necessary to prevent a multiplicity of judicial proceedings on these
same or similar issues.

42.  Accordingly, injunctive relief is appropriate.

DECLARATORY RELIEF ALLEGATIONS

43.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every allegation set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 42 of this Complaint.

44.  An actual and substantial controversy exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant as to
their respective legal rights and duties. Plaintiffs contend that the transfer program discriminates on
the basis of race in violation of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.
Defendant disputes that the transfer program is unconstitutional and illegal.

45.  There is a present justiciable controversy between the parties regarding the
constitutionality and legality of Defendant’s transfer program. Plaintiffs will be directly, adversely,
and irreparably harmed by Defendant’s actions enforcing and administering the transfer program,
and Defendant’s continuing administration, implementation, reliance, and enforcement of the
discriminatory transfer program now and in the future. A judicial determination of rights and

responsibilities arising from this actual controversy is necessary and appropriate at this time.
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CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States

Constitution and 42 U.S.C. 88 1981, 1983

46.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every allegation set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 45 of this Complaint.

47.  La’Shieka White and E.L. are persons under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1981 and 1983.

48.  Defendant acted under the color of state law in developing, implementing, and
administering the race-based Transfer Policy.

49. The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States
Constitution requires that, “[n]o State shall . . . deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal
protection of the laws.” U.S. Const. amend. XIV, § 1. All governmental action based on race must
be subjected to detailed judicial scrutiny to ensure that no person is denied equal protection of the
laws.

50.  Defendant VICC’s transfer program, on its face, discriminates against E.L. because
of his race. In particular, he may not continue to attend Gateway Science Academy pursuant to the
program because he is an African-American student residing in St. Louis County. If he were white,
he would be eligible to attend any public school located in the City of St. Louis, including Gateway.

51.  The Defendant’s actions in enforcing and administering the transfer program are not
narrowly tailored to a compelling state interest.

52.  Preventing E.L. from obtaining a quality education at Gateway Science Academy
because of his race serves no compelling state interest.

53.  Defendant’s racial discrimination against E.L. is not required to remedy past,

intentional discrimination.

- 10 -
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54.  The Defendant’s actions in enforcing and administering the transfer program do not
serve a compelling state interest, because the race-based restrictions on student transfers do not
secure the educational benefits that flow from racial diversity in higher education.

55.  The Defendant’s actions in enforcing and administering the transfer program are not
narrowly tailored to a compelling state interest, because Defendant has not first determined that
race-based measures are necessary to achieve a compelling governmental interest.

56.  The Defendant’s actions in enforcing and administering the transfer program are not
narrowly tailored to a compelling state interest, because Defendant cannot prove that a non-racial
approach would fail to promote the government objective as well at a tolerable administrative
expense.

57.  The Defendant’s actions in enforcing and administering the transfer program are not
narrowly tailored to a compelling state interest, because Defendant failed to exhaust race-neutral
alternatives before resorting to race-based classifications.

58.  The Defendant’s actions in enforcing and administering the transfer program are not
narrowly tailored to a compelling state interest, because Defendant is using race as a categorical
bar—and not merely a “plus” factor—in transfer decisions.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, based on the allegations above, Plaintiffs respectfully request judgment as
follows:

1. A declaratory judgment, pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201,
from the Court that the race-based restrictions in the transfer program enforced by VICC, which
prohibit African-Americans residing in St. Louis County from transferring to schools in the City of

St. Louis, are unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, and unenforceable, because they discriminate on the

-11 -
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basis of race and deny individuals equal protection of the laws in violation of the Fourteenth
Amendment to the United States Constitution and federal civil rights statutes 42 U.S.C. §§ 1981 and
1983;

2. For a preliminary and permanent prohibitory injunction enjoining Defendant VICC
and its agents, employees, officers, and representatives from adopting, enforcing, attempting, or
threatening to enforce the race-based restrictions in the transfer program which prohibit
African-Americans residing in St. Louis County from transferring to schools in the City of St. Louis,
insofar as it discriminates on the basis of race and denies individuals equal protection of the laws in
violation of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and federal civil rights
statutes 42 U.S.C. §§ 1981 and 1983;

3. A permanent injunction prohibiting Defendant from using race in future student
transfer decisions;

4. Attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and any other applicable legal
authority; and

5. All other relief this Court finds appropriate and just.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Local Rule 2.04, Plaintiffs
demand a trial by jury in this action of all triable issues.

DATED: May 4, 2016.

Respectfully submitted,
s/ Joshua P. Thompson
JOSHUA P. THOMPSON

Cal. State Bar No. 250955
WENCONG FA

-12 -
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Cal. State Bar No. 301679

Pacific Legal Foundation

930 G Street

Sacramento, California 95814
Telephone: (916) 419-7111
Facsimile: (916) 419-7747

E-Mail: jthompson@pacificlegal.org
E-Mail: wfa@pacificlegal.org
Attorneys for Plaintiff

- 13 -
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JCA.BP
VOLUNTARY INTERDISTRICT CHOICE CORPORATION

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY

Pursuant to the provisions of the Settlement Agreement, the following standards will be used in
determining eligibility of students participating or applying to participate in the transfer program.

City-to-County Student Eligibility

A.

C.

Black students residing in the City of St. Louis shall be eligible to transfer voluntar-
ily to a school and district in a participating district in their attendance area (or, if
they provide their own transportation, as defined in policy JFA.BP, to a participating
district outside their attendance area) in which school and district they would be in
the racial minority.

Kindergarten students may be limited to full-day status unless the students provide
their own transportation as defined in policy JFA.BP.

Black students in non-public schools in an area of the City of St. Louis who meet
the criteria of I.A. above are eligible.

County-to-City Student Eligibility

A.

White students residing in St. Louis County who are members of the racial majority
at a school in a participating district which is more than 50 percent white in its
enrollment shall be eligible to transfer voluntarily to the St. Louis Public Schools,
unless per the Settlement Agreement the district has elected to no longer partici-
pate in the county-to-city transfer program.

White students in non-public schools in an area of St. Louis County who meet the
criteria of 11.A above are eligible.

Behavioral Standards for Eligibility

A.

New Applicants

1. Applicants who have demonstrated disruptive behavior in a previously at-
tended district may be prohibited from voluntary interdistrict transfer. Prior
to the transfer of any applicant, the current district of attendance shall issue
a statement that the transferring student is in good standing and has no
record of recent disruptive behavior.

2. Applicants who apply for interdistrict transfer who are currently withdrawn
from school will be evaluated and permitted to transfer if there is no evi-
dence of disruptive behavior. If there is evidence of prior disruptive behav-
ior, these students may be permitted to transfer on a provisional basis as a
probationary transfer student, subject to no further disruptive behavior.

VICC Board Policies 43
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3. Administrative guidelines shall be developed to provide common standards
for determining disruptive behavior which shall include, but not be limited to,
criteria under the Safe Schools Act as may hereafter be amended or re-
vised.

B. Existing Students

1. City students applying to transfer from one county district to another county
district, and county students applying to transfer to another city magnet school,
will only be required to meet criteria under the Safe Schools Act as may
hereafter be amended or revised.

2. Nothing in this Section Il shall prohibit a receiving district from applying to
transfer students, once enrolled, the same behavioral standards it applies to
resident students.

V. Special Education Students

A. Students with disabilities may continue to participate in the voluntary pupil transfer
program. Their selection shall be consistent with the procedures used to select all
other students. The receiving school district shall provide students with disabilities
who are selected to participate with a free appropriate public education (including
receiving special education and related services consistent with their IEP).

B. If the sending district determines that the special needs of the student can be ac-
commodated in educational programs within the sending district, then the student
may be educated within the sending district at the option of the sending district.

C. Acceptance of new transfer students already receiving special education services
in their district of residence shall be limited to space and program availability in the
school assigned to the attendance area in which such student resides. Receiving
districts will reasonably endeavor to accommodate such students subject to such
limitations.

SUPERSEDES:
POLICY ADOPTED ON: May 5, 1999

LEGAL REFERENCE: (Settlement Agreement - Agreement Among Participating
School Districts - paragraphs 4 and 22.)

CROSS REFERENCE:  Student Assignment - JFA.BP
JCA_BP_Stud_Eligibility

44 VICC Board Policies
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2016-1¢
Magnet School Guide

With 27 specialty schools to choose
from, the SLPS Magnet Schools offer an

EXCITING, TUITION-FREE alternative for
students of all ages and abilities.




Whatis a

Magnet
School?

Students ordinarily
go to the public

6-c\Merke tihre. righit

chaiceforeyoauechildlt PageD #: 17

Choose 3PS Magnel dchools

Choosing a school for your child is one of the most important decisions a
parent makes. Do you have a child who doesn’t necessarily “fit the mold”
offered at your current school? Or are you looking for a change in direction
as your child advances from one level to the next? If so, there’s an exciting
educational alternative you need to know about! It’s the Saint Louis Public
Schools Magnet School Program.

For almost three decades, Saint Louis City and County families have
experienced extraordinary educational opportunities at the Magnet

school nearest them. Schools.
Magnet schools
are public schools 27 specialty Diverseand | Free Priceless Simple
without school schools challenging transportation | partnerships | and fair
boundaries. Each has cateringto a curriculum for eligible with application
something unique to wide range of students respected process
offer that you won't student talents local and
find in traditional and interests national

institutions

schools, whether it’s
a particular focus

on technology, the
arts, or a stimulating
curriculum designed
especially for gifted
students.

Because of high
demand in many
schools and grade
levels, admission is
based on a lottery
system.

=P Sece eligibility
criteria on Page 4.

Updates to this
information can

be found at www.
slpsmagnetschools.
org or slps.org/
magnets

Please join us at one of the following events:

MAGNET SCHOOL OPEN HOUSES at all school locations
Dates and times to be determined by individual Magnet and Choice
Schools. Check www.slps.org/magnets for schedule.

HIGH SCHOOL

HERE | COME NIGHT
for 7th and 8th Grade Students

MAGNET SCHOOL

RECRUITMENT FAIR
for Elementary and Middle School Students

Tuesday, Oct. 6, 2015 | 6:30 - 8:30 p.m.

Compton-Drew ILC Middle School
5130 Oakland Ave. 63110

Monday, Oct. 12,2015 | 6 - 8 p.m.

Saint Louis Science Center
5050 Oakland Ave. 63110

Free Admission Free Admission
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Be Creative
Their world is a stage, a canvas,
bright lights and beautiful
costumes. Your child thrives

on creating, performing and
entertaining. Our Visual &
Performing Arts Magnet Schools
provide the training, opportunities
and space artistic children need to
explore their creativity and develop
their talents. Thanks to our visiting
professional artists and partnerships
with STAGES, Muny Kids, the
Saint Louis Symphony, Opera
Theatre of St. Louis and more, your
child will be exposed to a world he
or she might otherwise only dream
about.

Think Deeper

Spoke French at age 2, understands
E=mc?, voracious reader, chess
master. Sound familiar? Gifted
children thrive in an environment
that challenges them to the nth
degree. SLPS Magnet Schools
proudly offer the only FULL-time,
tuition-free PS-8 gifted education
in the metropolitan area. Our
rigorous and challenging curricula
are guaranteed to fulfill your gifted
learner’s needs. Saint Louis Public
Schools offer free gifted screening.
For information or to schedule an
appointment, call 314.345.4548.
(To qualify for a gifted magnet
school, students must meet
state-approved criteria.) More
information on page 4.

Look Deeper
Digging in dirt, peering into

Case: 4:16-co-BI8FIPIgesnefnd

YF iled
encouraging you to live green. Your
child will experience hands-on
learning, while gaining exposure

to everything from engineering to
environmental science to computer
technology and health fields at our
schools that specialize in math,
science, technology and pre-
college learning. Partnerships with
the Missouri Botanical Garden,
Saint Louis Zoo, the University

of Missouri - St. Louis and

others further enrich your child’s
experience.

Share Cultures

Bonjour! Guten Tag! International
Studies Magnet Schools provide a
wonderful and exciting “passport”
to learning. Our students and staff
represent more than 30 countries.
Your child will learn multiple
languages, traditions, customs and
cultures in the classroom, in the

hallways and beyond.

Explore Earlier

Young minds are inquisitive by
nature. Our Early Childhood
Centers tap into that natural
inquisitiveness using a process-
oriented approach to learning
known as Project Construct. Your
child will be engaged in all-day
learning from preschool through
fifth grade, providing a strong,
solid foundation for his or her
future academic success.

Children needing special education
services require a caring approach.
Some magnet schools include

YSpITE ASRHELS I 2 Pag
classrooms for studefits whose
Individual Education Programs
(IEPs) call for it. Full inclusion and
cross-categorical classes are also

available.

Shine Brighter

Shiny shoes, crisp uniforms, brass
buttons. Cadets not only dress

the part, they walk and talk it.
Cleveland NJROTC Military
Academy builds character, inspires
service and creates strong leaders
today for tomorrow. Admittance
and enrollment depend on students
meeting the school’s academic
standards, and weight and

uniform fit requirements. Soldan
International Studies and Gateway
STEM high schools offer part-time
Air Force ROTC programs.

Be Unique

It’s cool to be different. Some
children like traditional learning.
Others excel when a teacher
identifies and supports their

ew ey

individual learning style. Magnet

3 1noA

;

schools are a great place for
“break-the-mold” students. Our
general academic programs are

recognized for inventive teaching
methods. We offer the largest
tuition-free Montessori program
in the metropolitan area. How
successful are our students? Qur
Metro Academic & Classical
High School is ranked in the top
four in the U.S. News and World
Report’s list of “Missouri’s Best
High Schools.”

A
o
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1) Any student living in the city of St. Louis

2) Non-African-American students living in the Affton, Bayless, Brentwood, Clayton, Hancock Place, Kirkwood,
Ladue, Lindbergh, Mehlville, Parkway, Pattonville, Ritenour, Rockwood, Valley Park and Webster Groves school
districts (K-12).

3) County residents cannot enroll in SLPS early childhood education (pre-kindergarten).

4) County residents are not eligible to enroll in choice high schools (Northwest, Carnahan, Clyde C. Miller)

Contact Information

City Families County Families

g www.slps.orglmagnets www.choicecorp.org

n 801 N. 11th St. 7425 Forsyth Blvd., Suite 110
St. Louis, MO 63101 St. Louis, MO 63105

= 314.633.5200 314.721.8422 ext. 3012

Placement Procedures

Please complete only one application per child.

If a second application is submitted, the lottery system used to place students into open seats at schools requested
will consider only the most recent application submitted for potential placement in the Pool A and Pool B
lotteries.

After the Pool A Lottery is complete, new applications with different or additional choices for consideration in
the Pool B Lottery will override any previous application submitted for a student that is on a wait list from the
Pool A lottery. Any application submitted for a different school than the site a student was accepted into will not
be processed unless the seat offered has been declined.

Please do not submit a request for placement to a school you are not willing to have your child attend. Any
child accepted to a school will not be considered for placement to other choices or remain on the wait list for
other choices requested. This includes students accepted to a second choice request. Any student accepted to

a requested second choice will no longer be considered for placement, nor remain on the wait list for the first
choice requested.
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Deadlines Pool B Application Period

The District has implemented a two-pool application, ~ Nov. 25, 2015 through Jan. 6, 2016

placement and notification timeline for students (Applications submitted after the Pool A deadline but
applying to Magnet and Choice Schools. This before Nov. 25, 2015 will be considered for Pool B
procedure allows for quicker notification and placement.)

information to be provided for acceptances, as well Placement notifications will be sent prior to Jan. 27,
as available openings. See below for the two pool 2016 for students applying in Pool B.

know about Magnet Schools

application deadlines and notifications dates.

Post-Lottery Application Period

Pool A Application Period Applications received after the Jan. 6, 2016 Pool
Oct. 1, 2015 through Nov. 5, 2015 B deadline will be processed and considered for
Placement notifications will be sent before Nov. 25, placement in the order received, after all applicants
2015 for students applying in Pool A. from pools A and B have been placed.

Gifted Testing and Placement

Saint Louis Public Schools students have access to two gifted elementary schools for grades PK4 - grade 5 and a
gifted middle school for grades 6 - 8. Once your application has been deemed to meet first-level criteria, someone
from the gifted office will contact you to schedule a testing appointment. Testing is not required for an applicant
to be considered in the lottery, but gifted-eligible status is required for a student to be accepted and offered a

seat. Gifted students for these age groups also have the option to apply to be part of gifted enrichment programs
at other magnet schools. Your child’s test must be administered by SLPS. No privately administered outside test
4|2016-17 SLPS Magnet Schools scores will be accepted. If you have questions, please call the Gifted and Talented office at 314.345.2435.
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Magnet High Schools

Central Visual and Performing Arts

3125 S. Kingshighway
314.771.2772
Central VPA’s educational program is designed
to create a nurturing environment where
students receive a quality academic and artistic
education that prepares them to compete
successfully at the post-secondary level or
perform competently in the world of work.
Students learn to communicate effectively,
enhance their physical and emotional well-
being, acquire a passion for lifelong learning and
demonstrate the ability to do critical thinking
and be creative.
* Submit a copy of previous year’s report card
with a minimum cumulative GPA of 2.75
* Submit a copy of previous year’s attendance.
Based on 176 days of school, the student
must have at least a 93 percent attendance
rate
* Submit a copy of the previous year’s
discipline report and be in good citizenship
standing (no out of school suspensions)

* Submit two letters of recommendation. Two
personal recommendation letters should come
from (1) an administrator and (2) an art teacher

* Once all required documentation is
received, audition dates and times will
be scheduled. Students who are granted
auditions must attend at the scheduled time
prepared to audition and be interviewed by
the administrative staff

* CVPA only accepts 9th and 10th grade
applicants

e All accepted students are required to attend
CVPAs 9th grade transition program,
parent orientation, pre-register and be
present on the first day of school

Cleveland NJROTC

4939 Kemper Ave.

314.776.1301

Cleveland Junior Naval Academy is a military
school with a strong emphasis on leadership
development and academic achievement.
Students have the opportunity to practice

leadership though the structure embedded in the
NJROTC program.
'The school provides all cadets with excellent
academic opportunities including Advanced
Placement classes, field experiences provided by
the Navy, intern experiences and opportunity
for travel with academic exploration.
Eligibility criteria to Cleveland Junior Naval
Academy include:
* 2.5 minimum GPA
* Grade of C or better in math and
communication arts for the entire year
* Submission of a five-paragraph essay, “Why
I want to be a cadet at Cleveland Naval
Junior Academy”
* Interview with student and parent/guardian
prior to acceptance
* Must have a good attendance record
* Must have no significant discipline history
e Parents of accepted students are required
to attend a two-hour orientation with the
cadet candidates and be willing to accept the
responsibility for the uniforms if they are
lost or damaged

2016-17 SLPS Magnet Schools | 5
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Collegiate School of
Medicine and Bioscience

1547 S.Theresa Ave.
314.696.2290
The Collegiate School of Medicine and
Bioscience (CSMB) Magnet High School is a
community of learners with a student body that
represents more than 35 ZIP codes and county
districts such as Ladue, Lindbergh, Parkway and
Rockwood. The school embraces the highest
of academic standards. CSMB is patterned
after some of the most successful high schools
across the nation, including, the distinguished
Michael E. DeBakey High School for the Health
Professions in Houston, Texas. CSMB offers
advanced curricula, which include many honors
and Advanced Placement (AP) courses. CSMB’s
environment and culture is one in which all of
its students and staff work together toward a
common goal of careers in medicine, health and
biomedical research.
Designed as a rigorous four-year medical
professions magnet program, the school’s mission
is to prepare a diverse student body to further
their studies at the nation’s best colleges and
universities. CSMB’s college prep curricula
include a minimum of four mathematics and
eight science courses, which will prepare students
with an academic foundation essential for post-
secondary studies. The school’s unique four-year
medical program provides students with project-
based learning experiences under the guidance of
health science and technology professionals in the
classroom and with local partners Goldfarb School
of Nursing, Washington University Medical
School, Saint Louis University School of Medicine
and Saint Louis College of Pharmacy. All students
complete an internship/practicum during their
senior year.
CSMB requires a written commitment from both
students and parents to follow the rigorous four-
year course sequence, complete a minimum of
200 hours of community service, earn First Aid
and CPR certification prior to entering the 11th
grade and abide by the school’s Honor Code and
Dress Code policies.
Admission Requirements:

* 6th and 7th grade final report card

* First grading period report card of

8th grade
* Test record (MAP or other national

6|2016-17 SLPS Magnet Schools

achievement tests)

¢ Excellent attendance record (documented)

e Letters of recommendation from two of
the following: current teacher, counselor,
principal or designated administrator

* Entrance essay

* A student and parent/guardian interview

e If accepted, attend the Medical High School’s
Summer Program prior to entering the 9th
grade

Gateway STEM

5101 McRee Ave.
314.776.3300
Gateway STEM (Science, Technology,
Engineering, Math) High School, recognized by
the United States Department of Education as a
New American High School, integrates a strong
academic curriculum emphasizing mathematics
and science with career preparation in highly
technical fields. Accelerated and advanced
placement courses are available. Gateway STEM
creates lifelong learners through skill building,
team building, real-life applications and service
to the community.
Eligibility criteria to attend Gateway STEM
High School include:
¢ Interest in mathematics, science,
engineering and/or technology
* Expectation to attend post-secondary
education at a university, college,
community college or technical school with
the intent to attain a diploma
* Student transcripts/report cards, test
scores, reflecting aptitude and success in
mathematics, science and writing
e Attendance of 90% or better required (over
93% preferred) and no major discipline
infractions or repeated behavioral issues
* Commitment to parental involvement, i.e.,
PTA, advisory committees, booster clubs,
support of school, volunteering

Metro Academic and Classical

4015 McPherson Ave.

314.534.3894

Metro provides a challenging, quality education
focused on high standards and expectations

in an atmosphere of unity, enthusiasm, caring

and respect for self, others and the community.
Service to the community is encouraged,

while the school promotes learning in all areas
to prepare students to become responsible
members of society who can function in a
technology-oriented world.

* Applicant must score at or above the Third
Achievement level on all of the most recent
MAP/EOC tests or be at the 50 percentile
level or more on a standardized test, in all
sub-areas of the test.

Applicant must score at or above the 50
percentile level on Acuity tests, if available,
throughout the school year of application.
Applicant must score at or above the Third
Achievement Level on all MAP/EOC
exams taken in the eighth grade after the
application was submitted and acceptance

was made. Continued achievement is
expected.

Applicant must have good attendance with
no more than five absences per semester
except in cases of physician-documented
illness/hospitalization and documented
family emergencies, i.e., deaths, fires,
accidents.

Eighth grade applicants must submit a copy
of the most recent report card and their

last report card of their eighth grade year to
validate classroom academic achievement
and attendance. This report card must
reflect a C or better in all subjects with the
exception of Physical Education, Art, Music,
and Practical Arts. One D will be acceptable
in any one of these four subjects. No D in a
core subject is acceptable.

Applicant must have excellent or good
evaluations on each item on the Official
Recommendation Checklist Form.
Recommendations must be submitted

by two of the following: applicant’s
teacher, counselor, principal or designated
administrator.

Students applying for 10th grade must
submit a transcript reflecting all semesters
enrolled, including the last completed
semester and a report card from the most
recent grading period. The applicants must
have a minimum GPA of 2.3 and no Ds or
Fs on their transcripts. Transcript should
also validate attendance and grade level.
EOC tests scores apply as mentioned above.
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McKinley Classical Leadership
Academy

2156 Russell Blvd.
314.773.0027
McKinley CLA provides a challenging
educational experience for students that is
accelerated and enriched beyond the normal
mandated curriculum. It provides a culturally
diverse educational program for all students in
an atmosphere for students to grow intellectually
and personally. The McKinley student-school-
parent support system improves and strengthens
cooperation between families and the school.
* Completed application
* Copy of most recent report card
* Discipline and behavioral record
* Attendance history report
* MARP scores
¢ Individual Education Plan (IEP) record, if
applicable
* Documentation to verify gifted standing
* Prospective students are required to write
and submit a brief essay “I am excited
about McKinley Classical Leadership
Academy because ...” The essay should
highlight the student’s reasons for wanting
to attend McKinley CLA and clarify which
Leadership Pathway sparked the student’s
interest. Students are also encouraged to
incorporate their ideas for school leadership
and community service in their essay.

Soldan International
Studies High School

918 Union Ave.

314.367.9222

Soldan ISHS is a nationally accredited high
school that prepares students for colleges

and 21st century careers in the medical field,
biomedical sciences, business, management, law
and leadership. Students attending Soldan take
part in a global studies curriculum, preparing
them for further education and careers in an
ever changing and diverse society.

Soldan’s rigorous curriculum focuses on
international studies, career preparation and the
use of technology. Students have honors and
Advanced Placement classes offered in all major
content areas, and a technology-embedded
curriculum complete with Promethean Boards,
Smart Boards, laptops, videoconferencing and
digital literacy. Soldan’s premier technology
capabilities include a state-of-the-art biomedical
sciences lab, veneer probes, digital literacy,
videoconferencing and Skype. Students have
opportunities to connect with other students
around the world.

Students at Soldan are prepared for careers in
the 21st century through Soldan’s community
partnerships. The Project Lead the Way (PLTW)
Biomedical Sciences Pathway partners with
Washington University Medical School, Barnes
Jewish Hospital, and Saint Louis University

7 of 12 PagelD #: 22

Hospital, designed for students interested in
becoming scientists, engineers, researchers,
crime scene investigation (CSI) or entering the
medical field. The Law Pathway partners with
the Washington University School of Law and
the Mound City Bar Association. Qualified
seniors complete an internship in their career
choice.

Additionally, Soldan offers a rich variety of fine
arts and sports activities for students, including
band, choir, basketball, football, baseball,
softball, tennis, wrestling, soccer, track, and
cross country. Enrichment and remedial services
are available. Students can enroll in the A+
program.

It is recommended that students have a:
* 2.5 GPA or higher
* 90 percent or higher attendance
* Good citizenship

Soldan concentrates on preparing students for
college and 21st century careers in a global,
technological world. It is recommended that
students:

¢ Study a foreign language - Offerings are in
Arabic, Chinese and German.

* Select a Career Pathway - International
Business, Business Management, PLTW
Biomedical Sciences careers in engineering
or medicine; and the leadership and law
with Washington University Law School.

2016-17 SLPS Magnet Schools | 7
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the best fit for my child?

Only you can decide. Consider your child’s interests
and abilities, and learn about the school options
available to you. Go to www.slpsmagnetschools.org
for information regarding scheduling of school-based
open house events. If you wish, contact the school
for a personal tour; the school staff will be happy

to answer questions you might have about their
programs.

The High School Here I Come night for current 7th
and 8th grade students will be held from 6:30 to
8:30 p.m. Tuesday, Oct. 6, 2015, at Compton-Drew
Investigative Learning Center Middle School at 5130
Oakland Ave.

SLPS high school representatives will make
presentations and answer questions to interested
students and their parents.

The Elementary and Middle Magnet Schools
Recruitment Fair will be from 6 to 8 p.m. Monday,
Oct. 12, 2015 at the Saint Louis Science Center at
5050 Oakland Ave.

| don’t see my child’s grade as an option
when applying for my school choice.
What do | do?

If you don't see the school or grade desired when
applying for a specific program, this means that there
are currently no open seats remaining for this grade
level at this school, and the wait list is lengthy. Please
consider applying to other schools with openings. If
you have questions, please call 314.633.5200.

Must | list more than one school choice
on my application?

No. You can list up to two schools, but you are not
required to. If there is only one school that interests
you and your child, you can limit your application

to that school. Please do not apply for a school you
are not willing to send your child to attend. Students
accepted to any school choice requested will no longer
be considered for placement to the other school
requested on the submitted application.

How will | know you received my
application?

We will email or mail you a receipt verifying that

we have received your application. Please review it
carefully to ensure all information is correct. If you do
not receive a receipt within 10 days of submitting your
application, city families should contact the Student
Recruitment and Placement office at 314.633.5200.
St. Louis County resident families should call the
VICC office at 314.721.8422, ext. 3012.

What are my child’s chances of being

accepted to a magnet school?

Applying within the lottery period deadlines will
greatly increase the chances of a child receiving an
acceptance offer. Please note, do not apply for a school
you are not willing to send your child to attend.
Students accepted to any school choice requested

a(vg\ ng lalfg‘iré)fjgg?iﬁe%fo? ac.:ement to.the.
er school requested on the submitted application.
Acceptance rates vary from year to year depending on

the number of seats available for a school/grade level.

When is the Magnet School Lottery?

The two Pool lotteries for the 2016-17 school year will
be held:

Pool A - Thursday, Nov. 19, 2015

Pool B - Wednesday, Jan. 20, 2016

How will I find out if my child is

accepted?

Placement Notifications will be emailed or mailed by:
Pool A - Wednesday, Nov. 25, 2015

Pool B - Wednesday, Jan. 27, 2016

The Application and Placement program and websites
used allow parents to access and view their student’s
application information, if they have applied online and
set up an account. Families also can learn the results
by calling the Student Recruitment and Placement
Office at 314.633.5200 or by emailing a request to
slpsmagnetschools@slps.org. St. Louis County resident
families can call the VICC office at 314.721.8422, ext.
3012, or email Imerlo@choicecorp.org.

What do | do after my child is accepted?
If your child is accepted, this will be considered as

the school for assignment unless you refuse the seat

in writing or via the email notification system. The
school your child is accepted to will contact you about
an open house for newly accepted students that will be
held before the end of the 2015-16 school year. Check

www.slps.org/magnetschools for details.

What if | change my mind after my child
is accepted?

St. Louis City resident families should inform the
Student Recruitment and Placement Office in writing,
or log in to their personal account to decline the

seat, or send an email to slpsmagnetschools@slps.org.
Please include your child’s name, birthdate, the school
and grade where a seat was offered, and the reason

for declining the seat. For SLPS students, if the seat
offered is declined, the child’s school assignment will
default to their previously attended Saint Louis Public
School. St. Louis County resident families should
notify the VICC office in writing, or send an email to
Imerlo@choicecorp.org.

What if my child is not chosen through
the lottery?

Your child’s name will be placed on a wait list. If
additional spaces for the school year applied for become
available, you will be notified via email or letter. If your
child is not accepted, you would need to reapply for the
next school year, if desired. If your child has not been
accepted to a school requested and you wish to apply for
a different school, or a school where openings exist, the
previous application submitted and wait list spot held
by that application will be deleted to accommodate the
new placement request.
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her first choice?

If you listed more than one choice on your
application, and your child is accepted to his or her
second choice, that school is the school he or she will
be eligible to attend for the 2016-17 school year. His
or her name will NOT automatically go on a wait list
for the first choice, and the other choice requested will
be deleted from the applications database.

If you are still interested in being considered for

your first-choice school, you must refuse the seat to
the school requested and where the seat was offered,
and resubmit a new application to go on the desired
school’s wait list. The placement on that school’s

wait list will be determined by lottery placement if
submitted for Pool B consideration, or added first
come first served for applications submitted after the
Pool B Lottery deadline.

Once my child is accepted, do | need to
reapply each year?

No. Once your child is accepted, enrolled and
attending a Magnet/Choice School you do not have to
reapply each year, presuming he or she will finish each
school year at the same Magnet/Choice School and
continues to meet eligibility criteria.

Specific 2nd-to-3rd, and 5th-to-6th grade students

JOER 61W|%1a

be a551gned to t e continuity school for e ‘program
they are attending.

Go to www.slps.org/magnetschools for the Magnet/
Choice Schools feeder pattern.

IMPORTANT! All 8th to 9th grade students must
apply to be considered for placement to a Magnet or
Choice High School. All criteria must be met to be
eligible for placement. Eighth grade Magnet Middle
School graduates are not guaranteed placement into
the continuing themed Magnet or Choice High
School if the eligibility criteria for that school is

not met.

My child attends a magnet school but
wants to transfer to a different magnet

school next year. What do | do?

You must submit a new application and be accepted
through the lottery. Your child will keep a spot in his
or her current school until (1) he or she is accepted
into the new school and (2) you've completed the
enrollment paperwork at the new school. Currently
enrolled Magnet and Choice schools students are the
last group considered for placement into other Magnet
and Choice Schools. SLPS Magnet and Choice
Schools enrollment does not allow for open transfer
from one Magnet or Choice School to another.

g“fﬂ“’lZ Pag

Have a question
you need
answered?

City families can email
slpsmagnetschools@slps.org
or call Student Recruitment
and Placement at
314.633.5200

County families can email
Imerlo@choicecorp.org or
call Voluntary Interdistrict
Choice Corp. (VICC) at
314.721.8422, ext. 3012.

For school-related questions,
please call the Magnet
School directly.

2016-17 SLPS Magnet Schools | 9
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Because the number of applicants requesting
placement often exceeds the number of open/available
seats, applications received within the stated deadlines

and dates are entered into a lottery to place students.
Two lotteries are scheduled for placement of applicants
submitting requests within two distinct time periods,
or pools. The lotteries are used to assure an equal
chance for all students applying to Magnet/Choice
Schools, within the pool application periods and
within placement priority categories.

When you enter your application using the online
entry system, or when it is entered manually for paper-
submitted applications, the request will be assigned

to its appropriate priority category. The computer
program then randomly selects an applicant and

The lottery

attempts to place the student in the choice(s) selected,
beginning with the first-choice school. If this choice is
not open, the applicant’s second choice is considered,
presuming an additional choice is listed.

The Pool lotteries for the 2016-17 school year will be
held by:

Pool A - Thursday, Nov. 19, 2015

Pool B - Wednesday, Jan. 20, 2016

What priorities affect the lottery process?
The SLPS Magnet Schools participate in the area-wide
desegregation program and have a goal of being racially
integrated.

Through the lottery system, all applications have equal
weight within various categories required to maintain
racially integrated schools. They are:

1ST PRIORITY

Continuity — Students currently enrolled in Magnet
Schools who are graduating to the next school level
(such as elementary school to middle school) are
guaranteed a seat in a Magnet/Choice School where
open seats exist/remain. Students matriculating

10|2016-17 SLPS Magnet Schools

from middle school to high school must meet school

eligibility criteria to be considered for placement in the
Magnet/Choice High School requested.

2ND PRIORITY

Sibling — Brothers and sisters of Magnet/Choice
School students who live at the same address and share
at least one biological or legal parent have priority
placement in the same Magnet/Choice School building
as their sibling. There is no guarantee, however,

that siblings will be placed together. Applications

for Sibling Priority consideration received in Pool

B periods will be considered for placement after all
Pool A applicants of all priorities are considered. No
applicants will be assigned Sibling Priority status after
the Pool B application period closes.

3RD PRIORITY

Neighborhood — City students living within

the “walk-to-school” boundaries set by the

District transportation department can apply

for Neighborhood Priority placement. There

is no guarantee that all Neighborhood Priority
eligible applicants will be placed. Applications for
Neighborhood Priority consideration received in Pool
B periods will be considered for placement after all
Pool A applicants of all priorities are considered. No
applicants will be assigned Neighborhood Priority
status after the Pool B application period closes.

REMAINING PRIORITIES

St. Louis City and St. Louis County applicants —
These students are placed in Magnet Schools through
the Pool A and Pool B lotteries after the higher
priority placements are made. These priorities vary
depending on the school a child currently attends.

St. Louis City and St. Louis County residents are
considered equally for Magnet School placement
within these priorities. For more information, visit
www.slps.org/magnetschools.
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801 N. 11th Street
SAINTLOUIS  o.int Louis, MO 63101

Magnet Early Childhood and Elementary Schools

(Grades PS-5 Except as Noted)

Ames Visual and Performing Arts
2900 Hadley Ave. 63107 - 314.241.7165

Dewey International Studies
6746 Clayton Ave. 63139 - 314.645.4845

Gateway Elementary
#4 Gateway Drive 63106 - 314.241.8255

Humboldt Academy of Higher Learning (3-5)
2516 S.9th St. 63104 - 314.932.5720

Kennard Classical Junior Academy
5031 Potomac Ave. 63139 - 314.353.8875

Lyon Academy at Blow
516 Loughborough Ave. 63111 - 314.353.1349

Mallinckrodt Academy of Gifted Instruction
6020 Pernod Ave. 63139 - 314.352.9212

Mullanphy Investigative Learning Center
4221 Shaw Blvd. 63110 - 314.772.0994

Shaw Visual and Performing Arts
5329 Columbia Ave. 63139 - 314.776.5091

Stix Early Childhood Center (PS-2)
647 Tower Grove Ave. 63110 + 314.533.0874

Washington Montessori
1130 N. Euclid 63113 < 314.361.0432

Wilkinson Early Childhood Center@ Roe (PS-2)
1921 Prather 63139 « 314.645.1202

Specialty

Visual and Performing Arts
Gifted Enrichment Available

International Studies
Gifted Enrichment Available

Math-Science-Technology

Early Childhood Education
Gifted Enrichment Available

Gifted Education

General Academics

Gifted PS-4
General Academics grade 5

Math-Science-Technology

Visual and Performing Arts
Gifted Enrichment Available

Early Childhood Education
Gifted Enrichment Available

General Academics
Gifted Enrichment Available

Early Childhood Education
Gifted Enrichment Available

Note: Preschool programs are only available to St. Louis City students. St. Louis County students are

eligible to attend kindergarten through grade 12.

Magnet Middle Schools
(Grades 6-8)

Busch Middle School of Character
5910 Clifton Ave. 63109 « 314.352.1043

Carr Lane Visual and Performing Arts
1004 N. Jefferson Ave. 63106 « 314.231.0413’

Compton-Drew Investigative Learning Center
5130 Oakland Ave. 63110 - 314.652.9282

Gateway Math & Science Prep
1200 N. Jefferson Ave. 63106 « 314.241.2295

McKinley Classical Junior Academy
2156 Russell Blvd. 63104 - 314.773.0027
Magnet High Schools
(Grades 9-12)

Central Visual and Performing Arts
3125 S. Kingshighway Blvd. 63139 - 314.771.2772

Cleveland Naval Junior ROTC @ Southwest
4939 Kemper 63139 « 314.776.1301

Collegiate School of Medicine and Bioscience
1547 S.Theresa Ave. 63104 « 314.696.2290

Gateway STEM
5101 McRee Ave. 63110 - 314.776.3300

McKinley Classical Leadership Academy
2156 Russell Blvd. 63104 - 314.773.0027

Metro Academic and Classical High School
4015 McPherson Ave. 63108 « 314.534.3894

Soldan International Studies
918 Union Ave. 63108 - 314.367.9222

Specialty

General Academics

Visual and Performing Arts
Gifted Enrichment Available
Math-Science-Technology

Math-Science-Technology

Gifted Education

Specialty

Visual and Performing Arts

Military

Pre-College Curricula

Math-Science-Technology

Accelerated Education

General Academics

International Studies

Questions?

If you have additional questions about the application and placement process,
city families should call the Student Recruitment and Placement Office at
314.633.5200. County families should call the Voluntary Interdistrict Choice
Corp. (VICC) at 314.721.8422, ext. 3012.

For school-related questions, please call the Magnet School directly.

City families can email slpsmagnetschools@slps.org.

County families can email Imerlo@choicecorp.org.

Important Dates and Deadlines

Magnet Recruitment Fairs

HIGH SCHOOL

HERE | COME NIGHT

for 7th and 8th Grade Students
Tuesday, Oct. 6, 2015 6:30 - 8:30 p.m.
Compton/Drew Investigative
Learning Center

5130 Oakland Ave. 63110

Pool A Application Period
Oct. 1, 2015 - Nov. 5, 2015 Nov. 25, 2015 - Jan. 6, 2016

Placement notifications will be sent before Placement notifications will be sent prior to
Nov. 25, 2015. Jan. 27, 2016.

MAGNET SCHOOL

RECRUITMENT FAIR

for Elementary and Middle School Students
Monday, Oct. 12,2015 6 - 8 p.m.

Saint Louis Science Center

5050 Oakland Ave. 63110

Free Admission

Pool B Application Period

Open house for prospective students and families
Dates and hours to be determined by individual Magnet and Choice Schools.
Check www.slpsmagnetschools.org for details.
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